
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 
601 Gloucester Street * Post Office Box 550 * Brunswick * Georgia * 31520-0550 * (912) 267-5500 * Fax (912) 267-5549 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor    City Attorney 
Felicia M. Harris, Mayor Pro Tem   Brian D. Corry 
John A. Cason III, Commissioner 
Julie T. Martin, Commissioner            City Manager 
Kendra L. Rolle, Commissioner  Regina M. McDuffie 

www.brunswickga.org 
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

AGENDA 
*** 

BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2022 AT 6:00 P.M. 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 

CALL TO ORDER **INVOCATION **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption of November 2, 2022 Regular Meeting Agenda.
PUBLIC COMMENT
2.

I. Johnny Hillary to Address Commission Regarding Flooding Prevention Recommendation.
II. Jenna Lightfoot to Address Commission Regarding Funding for St. Mark’s Tower.

III. Peter Schmidt to Address Commission Regarding Funding for St. Mark’s Tower.
UPDATE(S)
3. Magnolia Park/College Park Neighborhood Planning Assembly (NPA) Chairman Jeffery Muchison

to Address Commission Regarding Flooding in Magnolia Park.  
ITEM(S) TO BE CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL 
4. Consider Approval of October 19, 2022 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary changes.)  
(N. Atkinson) (Encl. 1)
5. Consider Approval of Community Development Block Grant-Disaster Relief Subrecipient Agreement for St. 
Mark’s Tower Project. (R. George) (Encl. 2)
6. Consider of Twelve (12) Alcohol License Renewals; and One (1) Renewal with Violations.  (A. Brown)
7. Consider Approval of Financial Reports as of September 30, 2022.  (K. Mills) (Encl. 3)
8. Consider Approval of Resolution 2022-11 ~ Authorize Additional Accounts to be Invested in Georgia Fund 1.  
(K. Mills) (Encl. 4)
9. Consider Rescheduling November 16, 2022 Commission Meeting.  (Mayor)
EXECUTIVE SESSION

http://www.brunswickga.org/
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


  

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2022 

 AT 5:00 P.M.  
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
PRESENT:  Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson, Mayor Pro-Tem Felicia Harris, Commissioner 
                       John Cason III, Commissioner Julie Martin and Commissioner Kendra Rolle     
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Johnson - meeting began at 5:00 p.m. 
INVOCATION: Mayor Johnson 
ADDENDUM(S) TO AGENDA 
Commissioner Rolle made a motion to defer agenda item number 3 – “Consider Approval of 
Rezoning Petition No. 22-04; from Hunter, Maclean, Exley & Dunn, PC, Agent, Petitioning to 
Rezone 50 Faith Avenue to Conservation-Preservation (CP) from R9 One-Family Residential (R9); 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously.  

** 
Mayor Johnson opened floor to anyone to address the commission regarding agenda item number 3. 
The following individuals addressed the commission: 
 

1) Ben Hartman on behalf of petitioner(s) for the rezoning (i.e. agenda item no. 3) stated that  
the petitioners are withdrawing the rezoning petition. 

2) Cornell Harvey thanked commission for their due diligence in regard to the rezoning petition; 
he also reported that Greater Works Than These Ministries no longer has an interest in the 
property in question (i.e. 50 Faith Avenue). 

3) Cedric King opposed the rezoning for the property in question (i.e. 50 Faith Avenue). 
** 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption of October 19, 2022 Regular Meeting Agenda.  
    Mayor Pro Tem Harris made a motion to adopt the above-referenced agenda with the addendum  
    referenced-above; seconded Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 
RECOGNITION(S), PRESENTATION(S), & AWARD(S) 
2. Proclamation Presentation to Goodwill Southeast Georgia Director of Marketing and  
    Communications Hillary Bradbury, Recognizing the Month of October as National Disability  
    Employment Awareness Month. 
    Proclamation accepted with gratitude. 
PUBLIC HEARING(S) – LAND USE 
3. Consider Approval of Rezoning Petition No. 22-04; from Hunter, Maclean, Exley & Dunn, PC,  
    Agent, Petitioning to Rezone 50 Faith Avenue to Conservation-Preservation (CP) from R9 One- 
    Family Residential (R9).  (J. Hunter) 
    The above-referenced item was deferred. 
 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


2 
 

UPDATE(S) 
4.  Zach Puckett, Project Manager, Pond & Company to Provide Update on Lanier-Gloucester  
     Intersection Improvement Intersection Design Update.  (G. Alberson) 
     Commission thanked Mr. Puckett and Mr. McArdle for the update. 
     City Clerk Atkinson was directed to draft a letter to GDOT regarding Commissioner Cason’s  
     comments. 
5.  Jim Ritchey, Whitman, Requardt & Associates, to Provide Update Regarding Transit Program.   
     (J. Hunter) 
     Commission thanked Mr. Ritchey for the update. 
6.  Urbana Perry Park Neighborhood Planning Assembly (NPA) Chairman Kitts and Vice  
     Chairperson Collins to Update Commission Regarding Issues/Concerns of Urbana Perry Park  
     NPA. 
     Commission thanked NPA Chair and Vice Chair for their updates/concerns. 
7.  Update Regarding Tiny House Program, Linda Heagy, Treasurer, Hand in Hand of Glynn.  
     Commission thanked Ms. Heagy for the update. 
8.  Update Improvements at Lovers Oak.  (R. McDuffie) 
      Miriam Lancaster and Sandra Colhard gave an overview of the history and plans for  
      improvements at Lovers Oak. 
      Informational only; no action required. 
9.  Update Goodyear Park Improvement Plan.  (R. McDuffie) 
     Informational only; no action required. 
ITEM(S) TO BE CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL 
10. Consider Approval of October 5, 2022 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any  
       necessary changes.)  (N. Atkinson)  
      Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve the above-referenced minutes; seconded by  
      Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 
11. Consider Approval of Contract for Construction of a Restroom and Equipment Building at  
      Orange Square.  (G. Alberson) 
       Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the contract with Miken Construction in the  
       amount of $132,700 for the above-referenced construction; seconded by Commissioner Rolle.   
       Motion passed unanimously.   
12.  Consider Approval of the Reorganization of the Brunswick Fire Department.  (L. Cargile) 
       Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced reorganization as  
       submitted; seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously. 
13. Consider Approval of Reorganization of Brunswick Police Department. (K. Jones) 
      Mayor Tem Harris made a motion to approve the above-referenced reorganization as submitted; 
      seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
CITY ATTORNEY’S ITEM(S)  
14. Consider Approval of Local Option Sales Tax Intergovernmental Agreement Between Glynn  
      County, Georgia and The City of Brunswick, Georgia. 
      Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced agreement; seconded by  
      Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 
15. Consider for Discussion and Approval Resolution 2022-10 ~ Imposing a Moratorium on the  
      Establishment, Expansion or Development of a Homeless Shelter Where One is not Currently  
      Operated.  
      Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced resolution, subject to City  
      Attorney Corry revisions; seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 



3 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Commissioner Martin made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss litigation; seconded 
by Mayor Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously. 
RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Mayor Johnson announced no action was taken. 
 
Commissioner Cason made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

MEETING ADJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 

 
        /s/Cosby H. Johnson   
        Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor  
Attest: /s/ Naomi D. Atkinson 
            Naomi D. Atkinson 
            City Clerk 



Page | 1 

SUBJECT:  Approval of CDBG-DR Subrecipient Agreement for St. Mark’s Tower 
Project 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             November 02, 2022 

PURPOSE: To approve the subrecipient agreement between the Department of 
Community Affairs and the City of Brunswick for the $6.0 million rehabilitation project 
for St. Mark’s Tower and provide for full execution of the agreement and any other grant 
documents and acceptance of the grant award.   

HISTORY:  St. Mark’s Tower sustained damage from Hurricane Irma and was identified 
as an eligible project for renovation and rehabilitation under the Community Development 
Block Grant-Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Affordable Multi-Family Rehabilitation 
Program.   

FACTS AND ISSUES: The building exterior sustained damage during the hurricane event 
and reinforcement of the building including the windows is needed to repair and make the 
building more resilient to storms. The roofing has been completed by St. Mark’s and is not 
a part of this project.   

BUDGET INFORMATION: $6.0 million, fully grant funded through DCA.  

OPTIONS: 

1. Approve execution of the agreement and acceptance of the grant award.

2. Do not approve execution of the agreement and acceptance of the grant award.

3. Take no action at this time.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Approve execution of the agreement and acceptance of the grant award.  

DEPARTMENT: Economic Development



Page | 2 

Prepared by:  Regina M. McDuffie, City Manager 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

St. Mark’s is a non-profit senior living facility that serves low-income seniors.  This project 
provides needed improvements to the buildings and helps safeguard citizens in our senior 
community.   

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve execution of the agreement and acceptance of the grant award.  

Regina M. McDuffie 10/18/2022 
________________________________ ________________________ 
City Manager              Date     



Pages from HUD Approved Action Plan Amendment 
Department of Community Affairs 

The full document is available at 
https://www.dca.ga.gov/node/7936 











Subrecipient Agreement (SRA) 

































































4. The Subrecipient shall comply with State of Georgia Action Plan for CDBG Disaster

Recovery, this contract, and all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, and

ordinances for making procurements under this contract.

5. The Subrecipient shall maintain a retainage in the amount of ten percent (10%) of each

construction or rehabilitation subcontract entered into by the Subrecipient until the

Grantee determines that the requirements applicable to each such subcontract have

been satisfied.

6. The Subrecipient shall include in any subcontracts that failure to adequately perform

under this contract may result in penalties up to and including debarment from

performing additional work for the Grantee.

VI. MISCELLANEOUS AGREEMENT PROVISIONS

1. Binding Effect. This Agreement and all of its terms, including recitals, shall inure to the

benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the parties hereto and their respective permitted

successors and assigns subject, however, to the limitations contained in this Agreement.

See section Vl.13 regarding assignability.

2. Authority Liability. All covenants, agreements, and obligations (collectively hereinafter

referred to as "Covenants") of the Grantee contained in this Agreement shall be effective

to the extent authorized and permitted by applicable law as it exists on the date hereof.

No such Covenant shall be deemed to be a Covenant of any present or future director,

officer, agent, or employee of DCA, the State of Georgia, or any agency or political

subdivision thereof in other than his/her official capacity, and neither the directors of DCA

nor any official executing this Agreement, nor any official, employee, or agent of DCA, the

State of Georgia, or any agency or political subdivision thereof, shall be liable personally

on this Agreement or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of

the Covenants of DCA contained in this Agreement.

3. Notices. All notices, requests, or other communications hereunder shall be in writing and

shall be deemed to be sufficiently given when emailed and/or to mailed by registered or

certified mail, postage prepaid or sent by a nationally recognized next day delivery

service, fees prepaid, to:

If to DCA: Georgia Department of Community Affairs 

Attn: CDBG-DR Program 

60 Executive Park South, NE 

Atlanta, GA 30329 

CD BG-DR SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 09.22 

Page 32 of46 



4. If to the Subrecipient : NAME: ______________ _ 
ATTN: _____________ _ 
ADDRESS: _____________ _ 
CITY, STATE ZIP __________ _ 

5. The Grantee or the Subrecipient, by appropriate notice, may designate any further or
different addresses to which subsequent notices, requests, or communications shall be
sent. Notices sent by mail shall be effective three days after posting and notices sent by a
nationally recognize� next business day delivery service shall be effective one business
day after being sent.

6. Severability. In case any section or provision of this Agreement, or any covenant,
agreement, stipulation, obligation, act or action, or part thereof, made, assumed,
entered, or taken under this Agreement, or any application thereof, is held to be illegal
or invalid for any reason, or is inoperable at any time, that illegality, invalidity, or
inoperability shall not affect the remainder thereof or any other section or provision of
this Agreement or any other covenant, agreement, stipulation, obligation, act or action,
or part thereof, made, assumed, entered, or taken under this Agreement, all of which
shall be construed and enforced at the time as if the illegal, invalid, or inoperable portion
were not contained thereof.

7. Any illegality, invalidity, or inoperability shall not affect any legal, valid, and operable
section, provision, covenant, agreement, stipulation, obligation, act or action, or
application, all of which shall be deemed to be effective, operative, made, assumed,
entered, or taken in the manner and to the full extent permitted by law from time to time.

8. Headings and Sections. The section and paragraph headings contained in the Agreement
are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning of interpretation of this
Agreement.

9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the parties
and no other writings or communications (oral or otherwise) shall have any legal effect
unless made pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

10. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

CDBG-DR SUB RECIPIENT AGREEMENT 09.22 

Page 33 of 46

City of Brunswick
City Manager Regina McDuffie

601 Gloucester St.
Brunswick, GA 31520










































	Agenda
	Encl. 1
	Encl. 2
	Encl. 3
	Encl. 4



